Griswold, Jim, EMNRD

From: Griswold, Jim, EMNRD

Sent: Monday, February 25, 2013 4:48 PM

To: 'Pohl, April E'

Subject: RE: BGT permits

Attachments: 2013 2-25 Federal 4 45 bbl BGT approval.pdf
April,

Attached you will find a pdf of the permit application for the 45 bbl BGT at the Federal #4 (APl 30-045-22803). | have
approved this permit with conditions. Those conditions are:

Condition #1. Fencing (Item 6 on page 2 of your application). You have requested that no fencing be required. This
request is denied. Fencing must be constructed around the BGT in accordance with Subsection D of 19.15.17.11 NMAC.

Condition #2. Signs (Item 8 on page 2 of your application). The application states the tank is signed in compliance with
19.15.3.103 NMAC. There is no such citation in current regulation. A sign in conformance with either Subsection C of
19.15.17.11 or 19.15.16.8 NMAC must be present at the location.

Also, with respect to Item 10 (Siting Criteria) on page 2 of the application, neither check box associated with
determination of the distance to water wells was selected. | reviewed the material provided and it does not appear the
BGT in question is within the defined radii. As such, | checked the “No” box and initialed it accordingly. As we discussed
previously, the permit application for the third BGT associated with this well should be submitted directly to the OCD
District 3 office in Aztec. Approval of the closure plan for the 95 bbl BGT was provided to you via email last week. Please
keep a copy of this email in your files as part of the permit approval as no hardcopy will be mailed. Thank you.

Jim Griswold

Senior Hydrologist

EMNRD/Oil Conservation Division
1220 South St. Francis Drive
Santa Fe, New Mexico 87505
505.476.3465

email: jim.griswold@state.nm.us

From: Pohl, April E [mailto:April.Pohl@chevron.com]
Sent: Thursday, February 21, 2013 8:42 AM

To: Griswold, Jim, EMNRD

Subject: RE: BGT permits

We are currently working on the application for the third BGT. It seems it was mistakenly assumed to be owned by a
pipeline company as it is not on the well pad. That application should be out soon.

| will ask about the fencing and leak detection issue.

April

From: Griswold, Jim, EMNRD [mailto:Jim.Griswold@state.nm.us]
Sent: Wednesday, February 20, 2013 4:28 PM




To: Pohl, April E
Subject: RE: BGT permits

April,
Attached you will find the closure approval for the 95 bbl BGT at Federal #4.

| am still reviewing the permit application associated with the 45 bbl tank Chevron desires to continue using. So far, |
have encountered a few difficulties with that application: no fencing, there appears to be a third BGT on the location for
which no application was filed, and it is not apparent from the tank schematic how leak detection is actually
implemented. Once | finish my review (probably tomorrow morning) | may have additional comments and concerns, but
in the meantime could you please begin to formulate a response. Thanks.

Jim Griswold

Senior Hydrologist

EMNRD/OQil Conservation Division
1220 South St. Francis Drive
Santa Fe, New Mexico 87505
505.476.3465

email: jim.griswold@state.nm.us

From: Pohl, April E [mailto:April.Pohl@chevron.com]
Sent: Wednesday, February 20, 2013 2:35 PM

To: Griswold, Jim, EMNRD

Subject: BGT permits

Good afternoon Mr. Griswold;

| have assumed ownership of the BGT permitting for the San Juan Business Unit in Aztec, NM. In December 2011, five
(5) banker boxes of BGT permits were delivered to Santa Fe by Leslie Barnes and Laura Clenney of Chevron. They were
told by Brad Jones to contact him and request specific permit applications be pulled for approval as needed.

| wasn’t sure if you would still like to stay with that practice or not. We are currently looking at a site — the Federal #4
(AP1 30-045-22803) with two (2) permit applications on file in your office. BGT 1 (45 bbl) is to be permitted for use and
BGT 2 (95 bbl) we would like to remove and close out.

Please advise as to how you would prefer to handle these.
| appreciate your guidance.
Thank you,

April E. Pohl
Regulatory Specialist
Aztec, NM

Office 505-333-1941
Fax 505-334-7134
Cell  505-386-8074
April.Pohl@chevron.com




Form C-144

District I State of New Mexico July 21, 2008
1625 N. French Dr., Hobbs, NM 88240 nd Natural Resources

District T For temporary pits, closed-loop systems, and
1301 W. Grand Avenue, Artesia, NM 88210 irtment below-grade tanks, submit to the appropriate
District ITI (%l ( "ancarvation Division NMOCD District Office.

1000 Rio Brazos Road, Aztec, NM 87410 . For permanent pits and exceptions submit to
District IV t. Francis Dr. the Santa Fe Environmental Bureau office and
1220 S. St. Francis Dr., Santa Fe, NM 875u> Sunta re, M 87505 pDrl(;:lrll(i? 8 ;:ggg to the appropriate NMOCD

Pit, Closed-L p System, Below-Grade Tank, or
Proposed Alternative Method Permit or Closure Plan Application

Type of action:  [X] Permit of a pit, closed-loop system, below-grade tank, or proposed alternative method

[ Closure of a pit, closed-loop system, below-grade tank, or proposed alternative method

[[] Modification to an existing permit

] Closure plan only submitted for an existing permitted or non-permitted pit, closed-loop system,
below-grade tank, or josed alternative method

Instructions: Please submit one application (Form C-144) per individual pit, closed-loop system, below-grade tank or alternative request

Please be advised that approval of this request does not relieve the ~nerator of liability should operations result in pollution of surface water, ground water or the
environment. Nor does approval relieve the operator of its respon:  lity to comply with any other applicable governmental authority's rules, regulations or ordinances.

L.
Operator: _Four Star Oil & Gas Company OGRID #:_131944

Address: _P.O. Box 36366 Houston, TX 77236

Facility or well name: _Federal #4

API Number: _30-045-22803 OCD Permit Number:
U/L or Qtr/Qtr _Qtr/Qtr P Section _3 Township _31N Range _7W County: San Juan
Center of Proposed Design: Latitude _36 924263° Longitude _107 530639° NAD: [J1927[] 1983

Surface Owner: [] Federal [] State [] Private [] Tribal Trust or Indian Allotment

2,

[JPit: Subsection For G of 19.15.17.11 NMAC
Temporary: [] Drilling [] Workover

[J Permanent [[] Emergency [] Cavitation [] P&A

[JLined [J Unlined Liner type: Thickness mil [JLLDPE [] HDPE [] PVC [] Other
[ String-Reinforced
Liner Seams: [ ] Welded [] Factory [J( er Volume: bbl Dimensions: L xW xD

3.
[ Closed-loop System: Subsection Ho  1.15.17.11 NMAC

Type of Operation: [ ] P&A [] Drilling a2 w well [_] Workover or Drilling (Applies to activities which require prior approval of a permit or notice of
intent)

[] Drying Pad [] Above Ground Steel Tanks [] Haul-off Bins [] Other
[ Lined [J Unlined Liner type: Thickness mil [JLLDPE[] HDPE [] PVC [ Other
Liner Seams: [] Welded [ ] Factory [] er

4.
X Below-grade tank: Subsection I of 19.15.17.11 NMAC

Volume: _45 bbl Type of fluid: _Produced Water

Tank Construction material: _Steel

X Secondary containment with leak detection [0 Visible sidewalls, liner, 6-inch lift and automatic overflow shut-off
[ visible sidewalls and liner [] Visible sidewalls only [] Other
il [J HDPE [] PVC [ Other

Liner type: Thickness ___

5.
C= ** e Method:

Submittal of an exception request is required. Exceptions must be submitted to the Santa Fe Environmental Bureau office for consideration of approval.

Form C-144 Oil Conservation Division Page 1 of 5















Site Inventory Sheet

Well Name & Number: jr/e'bEfZAL._ o
API #: R0~ 08NS -229%07%
Lease #:

Quarter/Quarter: E Section: 32 Township: _3S(/N  Range: 7o

Lat: A Flo.FA4A 03B Long: (O /0] 55 D@39

Pit Tank #1: Manufacturer: EAGLE \WELDIN(G
Serial #:___ @140 DOM: qQ-0s Size__ 7S bbl
o If N/A - Dimensions: Diameter Bt Height___S&t
Material: Steel s Galvanized Fiberglass
Tank Configuration: Double Wall_~<  Single Wall___ (Buried____ or Exposed ¢ Walls)
Contents: Produced Water_%  Condensate_~ Recycled Oil = ~ve7 LaAReL

Tank Top Covering: Solid/Cone-top Netting < (Solid X Fiber )

Secondary Containment: Yes %< No

Fencing around berm: Yes_ ~  No_~<
o Fence Type: Cattle Panel Field Fence__ Barbwire__
Pit Tank #2: Manufacturer: NA
Serial #:_____ A DOM:___N A Size bbl
o If N/A — Dimensions: Diameter \ 2+ Height G+
Material: Steel "X Galvanized Fiberglass
Tank Configuration: Double Wall_><  Single Wall___ (Buried___ or Exposed_)Q_Walls)
Contents: Produced Water_~ Condensate_~ Recycled Oil___ jot cagec %
Tank Top Covering: Solid/Cone-top ___ Netting_ <X (Solid "X Fiber )
Secondary Containment: Yes No_ ¢
Fencing around berm: Yes _z_ No_ 2
o Fence Type: Cattle Panel Field Fence_{ Barbwire__

Above-Ground Tank #1: Manufacturer:

Serial #: DOM: Size bbl
o If N/A — Dimensions: Diameter Height
Material: Steel Galvanized Fiberglass
Contents: Produced Water ___ Condensate___ (State # ) Recycled Oil____
Secondary Containment: Yes No

Above-Ground Tank #2: Manufacturer:

Serial #: DOM: Size bbl
o If N/A — Dimensions: Diameter Height
Material: Steel Galvanized Fiberglass
Contents: Produced Water_~ Condensate_ (Statc # . ) Recycled Oil
Secondary Containment: Yes No

Above-Ground Tank #3: Manufacturer:

Serial #: DOM: Size bbl
o If N/A — Dimensions: Diameter Height
Material: Steel Galvanized Fiberglass
Contents: Produced Water_~ Condensate__ (State # ) Recycled Oil

Secondary Containment: Yes No




Well Schematic

HORTH

chemati H T )

Separator SEP Artificial Lift AL Condensate Tank

COND

Compressor COMN Pleter Bun METER RUN

Dehydrator DEH Well Head O Water Tank WATER

iMeasure any distance 1000ft or less of the following:

« From wellhead to any continuous flowing or significant water course.  NA

« From below-grade tanks to any permanent residence, school, church, hospital, etc. V&
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The San Jose overlays the nonresistant slope-forming Nacimiento Formation (Tn).
Thickness of the San Jose ranges from less than 200’ at the outcrop on the west and
south sides to almost 2700 feet in the the Basin center (Stone, etal, p. 25). The thickness
is 1300’ or less on the southern part of the Tapicitos Plateau where the San Jose
structurally rises and its upper beds are eroded. In the Largo Plains area {Largo Canyon)
which marks the we  :rn exposure of the preserved San Jose, more than half of the
Formation was removed by erosion (Baltz, p. 46). The San Jose Formation contact is
that of an angular unconformity surface with the underlying Paleocene-age
Nacimiento Formation near the Nacimiento Uplift, but is slightly disconformable to
conformable in the Basin center (Stone, etal, p. 25).

The San Jose Formation is comprised of four identifiable rock facies n ascending order)
called the Cuba Mesa, the Regi 1, the Llaves and the Tapicitos Members. These four
members are only p  sent in the far eastern part of the basin (Brimhall, 1973, p. 198).
Within the preserved areq, only the Cuba Mesa and Regina are widespread throughout
the basin. The oldest Member of the San Jose is the Cuba Mesa (150-800 feet thick),
which is largely a massive cliff-forming buff and yellow, rusty-weathering cross-bedded
arkosic coarse-grained sandstone with lenticular reddish, green and gray shale beds
(Baltz, p. 46). The Ci «a Mesa is overlain in the southern two-thirds of the area by drab-
colored variegated shale and interbedded soft to hard sandstones known as the
Regina Member (100 to 1700 fee thick) and overlain in the northern one-third by a thick
sequence of sandstone called the Llaves (50 to 1300 feet thick) which in turn
interfongues and grades southward into the Regina. In the northeastern part of the
areq, the upper Llaves Member grades southward and westward into the red silty
mudstones, siltstones and interbedded poorly consolidated sandstones of the Tapicitos
Member (120-500 feet thick) (Stone, etal, p. 25).


















Map Unit Description: Penistaja-Buckle association, gently sloping—San Juan Federal #4
County, New Mexico, Eastern Part

Down-slope shape: Convex

Across-slope shape: Convex

Parent material: Eolian deposits over fan alluvium derived from
sandstone and shale

Properties and qualities
Slope: 0 to 5 percent
Depth to restrictive feature: More than 80 inches
Drainage class: Well drained
Capacily of the most limiting layer to transmit water

(Ksat): Moderately high (0.20 to 0.60 in/hr)

Depth to water table: More than 80 inches
Frequency of flooding: None
Frequency of ponding: None
Calcium carbonate, maximum content: 2 percent
Gypsum, maximum content: 2 percent
Maximum salinity: Nonsaline (0.0 to 2.0 mmhos/cm)
Sodium adsorption ratio, maximum: 2.0
Available water capacity: High (about 9.9 inches)

te -etive groups
Land capability (nonirrigated): 6¢
Ecological site: Gravelly Loamy (R036XB006NM)

Typical profile
0 to 13 inches: Silt loam
13 to 47 inches: Clay loam
47 to 66 inches: Silty clay loam

Data Source Information

Soil Survey Area: San Ju County, New Mexico, Eastern Part
Survey Area ata: Version 9, Feb 20, 2009

Natural Resources Web Soil Survey 2.1 21¢£012009
Conservation Service National Cooperative Soil Survey Page 2 of 2












BELOW GRADE TANK (BGT) DESIGN AND
CONSTRUCTION PLAN

SUBMITTED TO:

ENVIRONMENTAL BUREAU,

NE 7 MEXICO OIL CONSERVATION DIVISION

ON BEHALF OF:

CHEVRON USA INC., CHEVRON MIDCONTINENT, L.P., AND FOUR STAR OIL & GAS
COMPANY
P.O.Box 730
AZTEC, NEW MEXICO 87410
(505) 333-1901



Chevron
San Juan Basin
Beloe Grade Tank Design and Construction Plan

INTRODUCTION

In accordance with NMAC §§ 19.15.17.9(B)(4) and 19.15.17.11 Chevron (representing Chevron USA
Inc, Chevron Midcontinent, L.P.,, and Four Star Oil & Gas Company) submits this Design and
Construction Plan for below grade tanks (BGTs) in New Mexico. This Plan contains standard
conditions that attach to multiple BGTs.

1. Chevron will design and construct a BGT to contain liquids and solids, prevent
contamination of fresh water, and protect public health and the environment.
NMAC §19.15.17.11(A).

2. Chevron will post an upright sign not less than 12 inches by 24 inches with
lettering not less than two inches in height in a conspicuous place on the fence
surrounding the BGT, unless the BGT is located on a site where there is an
existing well, signed in compliance with NMAC § 19.15.16.8, that is operated by
Chevron. Chevron will post the sign in a manner and location such that a person
can easily read the legend. The sign will provide the following information:
Chevron’s name; the location of the site by quarter-quarter or unit letter, section,
township and range; and emergency telephone numbers. NMAC § 19.15.17.11(C).

3. Chevron will fence or enclose a BGT in a manner that prevents unauthorized
access and will maintain the fences in good repair. Fences are not required if
there is an adequate surrounding perimeter fence that prevents unauthorized
access to the well site or facility, including the BGT. NMAC § 19.15.17.11(D)(1).

4. Chevron will fence or enclose a BGT located within 1000 feet of a permanent
residence, schc |, hospital, institution or church with a chain link security fence,
at least six feet in height with at least two strands of barbed wire at the top.
Chevron will close and lock all gates associated with the fence when responsible
personnel are not on-site. NMAC § 19.15.17.11(D)(2).

5. Chevron will fence BGTs to exclude livestock with a four foot fence that has at
least four strands of barbed wire evenly spaced in the interval between one foot
and four feet above ground level. NMAC §19.15.17.11(D)(3). Chevron may
install tubular steel cattle panels, as it determines appropriate (photo of cattle



10.

11.

12.

panel fence su nitted to NMOCD, 24 June 2009). As illustrated on the attach
photo.

Chevron will screen the permanent opening on the tank top with expanding steel
mesh in order to render it non-hazardous to wildlife, including migratory birds.
NMAC § 19.15.17.11(E).

Chevron’'s BGTs will be constructed with the design features illustrated on the
attached draw g.

Only double-walled, double-bottomed BGTs will be installed.

Chevron will use 3/16” carbon steel which is resistant to the anticipated contents
and resistant to damage from sunlight. NMAC § 19.15.17.11(I)(1).

Chevron will construct a BGT foundation on a level base free of rocks, debris,

sharp edges or irregularities to help prevent punctures, cracks or indentations of
the liner or tank bottom. NMAC § 19.15.17.11(I)(2).

Chevron will construct a BGT to prevent overflow and the collection of surface
water run-on. NMAC § 19.15.17.11(I)(3). Chevron, or a contractor representing
Chevron, will install a level control device to help prevent overflow from the BGT
and will use bc ms and/or diversion ditch to prevent surface run on from
entering the BGT. NMAC §§ 19.15.17.11(I)(3), 19.15.17.12(A)(7), and
19.15.17.12(D)(1).

All BGTs, in which the side walls are not open for visible inspection for leaks, will
be double walled with leak detection capability. NMAC § 19.15.17.11(I)(4)(b).

13. Chevron, as tl  operator of a below-grade tank constructed and installed prior to

June 16, 2008 that does not meet all the requirements in Paragraphs (1) through
(4) of Subsection I of 19.15.17.11 NMAC and is not included in Paragraph (6) of
Subsection I of 19.15.17.11 NMAC, is not required to equip or retrofit the below-
grade tank to comply with Paragraphs (1) through (4) of Subsection I of
19.15.17.11 N1 AC so long as it demonstrates integrity. If the existing below-
grade tank does not demonstrate integrity, the operator shall promptly remove
that below-gr: e tank and install a below-grade tank that complies with
Paragraphs (1) through (4) of Subsection I of 19.15.17.11 NMAGC, as illustrated in
the approved -awing. Chevron shall comply with the operational requirements
of 19.15.17.12 NMAC.
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NOTES:

1. FABRICATOR TO PRESSURE TEST THE AREA BETWEEN THE TANK WALLS TO ENSURE LEAK—FREE DOUBLE CONTAINMENT.
2. TANK TO BE CONSTRUCTED OF 3/16" THK. ASTM A36 STEEL. ALL PIPING TO BE SCH. 40 CARBON STEEL
3. DOUBLE WALL DOUBLE BOTTOM.

4. DEPENDING ON THE ORIENTATION OF THE EQUIPMENT ON LOCATION, ONE OF THE STUBS MAY BE CONNECTED TO THE
DIFFUSER. ANY OF THE FOUR 2° STUBS THAT ARE NOT CONNECTED TO THE DIFFUSER WILL BE CAPPED BOTH INTERNALLY AND EXTERNALLY.

5. UNDERGROUND TANK CONNECTIONS AND TRANSFER LINES ARE WELDED. ALL UNDERGROUND TRANSFER LINES HAVE

BY |DATE REVISION

CHEVRON NORTH AMERICA
EXPLORATION AND PRODUCTION

-

95 BBL

STANDARD BELOW GRADE TANK

RIP {o/ae .
A FUSION BONDED EPOXY (FBE) COATING OR SIMILAR 08| | ADDED NGTES S = T =]
8. CHEVRON WILL CONSTRUCT A BGT FOUNDATION ON A LEVEL BASE FREE OF ROCKS, DEBRIS, SHARP EDGES OR IRREGULARITIES WOB| 11708 | REVISED DFFUSER, ADDED NOTES LA S | e 110 D
TO HELP PREVENT PUNCTURES, CRACKS OR INDENTATIONS OF THE LINER OR TANK BOTTOM. NMAC 19.15.17.11(1)(2). 9 |sje_| ISSUED FOR APPROVAL 3 P BLOWDOW THK {00




BELOW GRADE ANK (BGT) OPERATING AND
MAINTENANCE PLAN

SUBMITTED TO:
ENVIRONMENTAL BUREAU,

NE 7" MEXICO OIL CONSERVATION DIVISION

ON BEHALF OF:

CHEVRON USA INC., CHEVRON MIDCONTINENT, L.P., AND FOUR STAR OIL & GAS
COMPANY

P.O.Box 730
AZTEC, NEW MEXICO 87410

(505) 333-1901






(1) through (4) of Subsection of 19.15.17.11 NMAC. NMAC § 19.15.17.12(D)(5). If
replacement is required, the BGT will meet all specification included in the attached
approved design drawing.

If Chevron as the operator of the below-grade tank that was constructed and installed prior
to June 16, 2008 that does not comply with Paragraphs (1) through (4) of Subsection I of
19.15.17.11 NMAC and equips or retrofits the existing tank to comply with Paragraphs (1)
through (4) of Sub ction I of 19.15.17.11 NMAGC, then Chevron or their representative shall
visually inspect the area beneath the below-grade tank during the retrofit and document
any areas that are wet, discolored or showing other evidence of a release on form C-141.
Chevron shall demonstrate to the division whether the evidence of contamination indicates
that an imminent t eat to fresh water, public health, safety or the environment exists. If the
division determines that the contamination does not pose an imminent threat to fresh water,
public health, safety or the environment, the operator shall complete the retrofit or the
replacement of the below-grade tank. If Chevron or division determines that the
contamination poses an imminent threat to fresh water, public health, safety or the
environment, then Chevron shall close the existing below-grade tank pursuant to the
closure requirements of 19.15.17.13 NMAC prior to initiating the retrofit or replacement.
NMAC § 19.15.17.12(D)(6). If replacement is required, the BGT will meet all specification
included in the attached approved design drawing.

Chevron, or a contractor representing Chevron, will use berms and/or diversion ditches to
prevent surface run-on from entering the BGT by diverting surface water run-on away from
the bermed area. NMAC §§ 19.15.17.12(A)(7) and 19.15.17.12(D)(1).

Chevron, or a contractor representing Chevron, will not allow a BGT to overflow and will
maintain adequate freeboard on existing BGTs by routine inspections utilizing pumper
trucks whose routes are timed based on known production rates. Fluid is pumped out on
this schedule. For newly constructed BGTs Chevron, or a contractor representing Chevron,
will maintain adequate freeboard by installing level control devices that automatically shut
off inflow to a ‘viate potential overtopping. NMAC § 19.15.17.12(D)(1) and
19.15.17.12(D)(4).

Chevron, or a contractor representing Chevron, will remove a visible or measurable layer of
oil from the fluid surface of a BGT. NMAC § 19.15.17.12(D)(2).

9. Chevron, or a contractor representing Chevron, will inspect the BGT to assess
compliance wit  NMAC § 19.15.17.12, Operational Requirements, at least once monthly
dr natain written record of each inspection for at least five (5) years. ..1le:  roved

inspection form is attached.



Chevron: I aw Mexico Inspection Form for Below
Grade Tanks

Inspection Date:

Below Grade Tank (BGT) Location:

Does the BGT have adequate freeboard to prevent overflow; yes no
Does the tank have visible leaks or sign of corrosion; yes no
Do tank valves, flai es and hatches have visible leaks; yes no
Is there evidence of significant spillage of produced liquids; yes no

Is this a single of double wall tank;

Are berms and/or diversion ditches in place to prevent surface
run-on from entering the BGT; yes no
Have visible or measurable layers of oil been removed from

juid surface fluid; yes no












14) As per NMAC § 19.15.17.13(G)(1), once Chevron has closed a BGT or is no longer using the BGT
or an area associated with the BGT, Chevron will reclaim the BGT location and all areas
associated with iti luding associated access roads not needed by the surface estate owner to a
safe and stable condition that blends with the surrounding undisturbed area. Chevron will
substantially restore impacted surface area to the condition that existed prior to its oil and gas
operations by placement of soil cover as provided in NMAC § 19.15.17.13(H) (see below), re-
contour the location and associated areas to a contour that approximates the original contour
and blends with the surrounding topography, and re-vegetate according to NMAC §
19.15.17.13(). NMAC § 19.15.17.13(G)(1).

15) Chevron may prt vjose an alternative to the re-vegetation requirement of NMAC §
19.15.17.13(G)(1) if demonstrates that the proposed alternative effectively prevents erosion,
and protects fresh water, human health and the environment. The proposed alternative must be
agreed upon in writing by the surface owner. Chevron will submit the proposed alternative,
with written documentation that the surface owner agrees to the alternative, to the division for
approval. NMAC §19.15.17.13(G)(2).

16) Soil cover for closures where Chevron has removed the pit contents or remediated the
contaminated soil to the division’s satisfaction will consist of the background thickness of topsoil
or one foot of suitable material to establish vegetation at the site, whichever is greater. NMAC §
19.15.17.13(H)(1).

17) Chevron will const ct the soil cover to the site’s existing grade and prevent ponding of water
and erosion of the cover material. NMAC § 19.15.17.13(H)(3).

18) As per NMAC § 19.15.17.13(I)(1) and 19.15.17.13(G)(2), Chevron will seed or plant disturbed
areas during the fir growing season after it is no longer using a BGT or an area associated with
the BGT including access roads unless needed by the surface estate owner as evidenced by a
written agreement with the surface estate owner, if any and written approval by NMOCD.

19) Seeding will be acar plished by drilling on the contour whenever practical or by other division
approved methods. Chevron will obtain vegetative cover that equals 70% of the native
percnnial vegetative cover (un-impacted by overgrazing, fire or other intrusion damaging to
native vegetation) consisting of at least three native plant species, including at least one grass,
but not including noxious weeds, and maintain that cover through two successive growing
seasons. During the two growing seasons that prove viability, Chevron will not artificially
irrigate the vegetation. NMAC § 19.15.17.13(I)(2).

20) Chevron will notify the division when it has seeded or planted and when it successfully achieves
re-vegetation. NMAC § 19.15.17.13(I)(5).

21) Seeding or planting will be repeated until Chevron successfully achieves the required vegetative
cover. NMAC §19.15.17.13(I)(3).






